
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Helen Wright, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 304022 E: helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 
Date:    Wednesday 3 October 2012 
Time:   4pm 
Venue: Council House (next to the Civic Centre) 
 
Members: 
Councillor Mrs Aspinall, Chair. 
Councillor Tuffin, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Bowie, Bowyer, Casey, Philippa Davey, James, Monahan, Murphy, Mrs Nelder, 
Nicholson and Wigens. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
 
 
Bob Coomber 
Interim Chief Executive 

 

 

 Bob Coomber 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 25-9-2012 

Public Document Pack



 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
 

  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 16) 
  
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will be asked to agree the minutes of the 

meeting held on 3 July 2012 and 5 September 2012. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. TIME OF MEETINGS    
  
 To review the time of scheduled meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 

Board. 
  
6. TRACKING DECISIONS   (Pages 17 - 22) 
  
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will monitor progress on previous 

decisions. 
  
7. CALL-INS    
  
 Members will be advised of any executive decisions that have been called in. 
  
8. URGENT EXECUTIVE DECISIONS    
  
 Any executive decisions that have been deemed urgent with the agreement of the Chair 

of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will be submitted. 
 

  



 

9. NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY 
DECISIONS/PRIVATE BUSINESS (FORMERLY 
KNOWN AS THE FORWARD PLAN)   

(Pages 23 - 24) 

  
 To receive new items from the Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions/Private Business 

(formerly known as the Forward Plan). 
  
10. RECOMMENDATIONS    
  
 To receive and consider any recommendations from panels, Cabinet or Council. 
  
11. FIRST QUARTER JOINT PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE REPORT   
(Pages 25 - 50) 

  
 To receive and consider a report on the first quarter joint performance and finance 

report. 
  
12. WORK PROGRAMMES   (Pages 51 - 58) 
  
 To consider and approve work programmes for each of the panels, to include a progress 

update from each of the Chairs. 
  
13. PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT (PID)   (Pages 59 - 62) 
  
 To consider the proposal for a task and finish group on library modernisation by the 

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 
  
14. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) … of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  



This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
��
��
������
��������

����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
�
�

�
��
������
��������
�

����� �!�
�
����������	
��	��
������	��	���	������	
����������	�������	����	������	
�����������	����	�����������	���	����������	�����������	������	�������	������	������	

�������	
��
���	
��	��� ��	�� 	!�"����	
	
�
���"���	���	�������#	�����������	$����

�	%�&��	�� 		����������	
	
����	��	����� ����#	����������	��'��	��������	
�����	���	�����
�����	����������	(&���	
����	)�� ����	����������	)����	��������	
�����	���	*��������		����������	
�%���� 	
��������	
�����	���	$�����	+�����	�� 	� ���	,�����	������	����������	$��������	
��������	
�����	���	���
����&��	�� 	���������	%�&���
������	-����	$������	�+�� 	��	
$������	$���������
�	�� 	$������������	����������	$����	,����	�%�
���	)�� ����	
����������	�������	��������	
�����	���	(�&����������	����������	!�������	��������	

�����	���	���� ���	�� 	.���"	$��
���	�� 	+����	!��"��	�%���������	,�

���	
/��������	
	
���	������"	������ 	��	0�12	
�	�� 	������� 	��	3�42	
��	
	
�����������	
�
�������
������������
������
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������
�������������
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
�����������
�������
�
����������������������	
	

���� "�#$%�%�&� ���'�& ���������
	
�����	����	��	 �����������	��	��������	�� �	��	�������	��	����� ����	����	���	�� �	��	
��� ����	
	

���� #(%&�)��*�+� ���*�& ������
	
�����	����	��	�����	��	�����5�	��"���	���������	
	

���� #�����%����$% �����,���-���
	
���	+�� 	��	$������	$����������	�� 	$���������
�	� &��� 	����	���	���
�����	$���	���	
���"������	�������� 	��	���	
���"�����	���� 	��	�������	4264	��	
���	��	���	�� "��	��������	

�������		���	$���	���	���7���	��	�	������	��	�������� ������	�����	����	�� ���� 	��	
���	����	��������	���	
��
���	��	����	������"	���	��	����������	���	��&������	�� �	��	���	
$����	
	
���	)�� ��	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	���
������������	�����	����� � 	8	
	

�	 ���	���
�����	$���9	
�	 ��������	�����
����	�� 	��
�������9	

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3Page 1



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

�	 %����������	$�������	�� 	��������� 	�� ���9	
�	 ��"�����	�� 	�����	��������	������"��	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

���	 ��	�����	��	���	���	���'	�����	��	7����	���	)�� ��	���� 	������	��		
��"����	��	
�����"	��	
����	
����	�� 	��������&��	��	�����'	���"	����	
����
�������	������	���	����9	
		

���	
		

�������	 ��	 ���	 
���"�����	 ���� 	 ����	 ����"	 �������� 	 ��	 ���	
�����	��������	��"�� ��"	���	���
�����	$���9	�	 ���������	���'	
����	
��"�� ��"	 ���	 
��	  �������	 ��������	 �����"������	 �� 	 �������	

�������	����� 	��&�	����	�������� 	������	��	����	���������9	
	

���	
		

���	���
�����&�	�������	�����	���� 	��	�
����� 	������	���	�;�����"	
�� "��	��������'	�����	�� 	����	���	��	
����	42649	����	���� 	��	
�	 ��������	���	��	���'��"	���	���	�������	���	��	���	����	����9	
�������"�	�����	���� 	��	&���������	������	���	�������	�� "��	
��������'�9	
		

� �	 ����	���	�� ������	��	���	������	��	�������	
������	����	���	��	
��"��	����	
��&� � 	��&����	��	���	���	��	<=2�222	�����	���� 	��	
��� 	��	���	�
	���	���������	(�������	%�&���
����	�����9	 ����	
����	�� ��	���� 	��	��� 	��	���	!������	�������	

	
���	%�
���	)�� ��	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	���
����������	�����	����� � 	>	
	

�		 ���������	���&����	����� ��"	���������9	
�	 ��������	����������	�� 	��&��	
���������9	
�	 �������	����"�����	��������9	
�	 �
����	 �&���
�����	

	
���	�����	���'	����	�

��������	��	���"��������	���	%�
���	)�� ��	��	���	������ ��"	
�������	��	���� 	*�����	%��	�����	���'	
����	��	12	����	4264�	�� 	��'� 	���	���	���� 5�	
���"�����������	��	��	
���� 	��	���	����	����	�� 	����	��&��&� 	����	���	�&����	
	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

���	 �����	���	��	���������	������	���	���������	��	���	�������	��	
���������9	
		

���	
		

���	 �������	 ���	 ���������	 �������"	 ����	 �����	 �����	 �����������	
��"�� ��"	7���� 	�
	?��	���&����9	
	

�"�	
		

���'	���	����"	�� ����'��	��	��&����"���	����	��	���������"	&����	
��"����������	����	��	�������������	����"	������ 	����	�	
��@�	������"	
���
�������	����	
��
��	��"������ 	��	&���9	
	
	
	

Page 2



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

���	 �����	���	�	����������	��	��� ��"	�	���"	����	��������	���	������	
,� �	���	�������9	��
��&�����	���'�	�� 	����� �	����	�� ����'��	
����	��	���	�������������	��	���	������	���������	�� 	��������"	��	
���	����9	
	

���	 ��	�� ��	��	��"�"�	�������	��	�����	����	���	���
�����&�	�������	
������	�	���	��
�����	��� ���'	���	����"	 ����� 9	�������������	
���'�	���� 	����	��	��
��&� 9	���	�������5�	��
�����	��������	
 �������	������	��+//,(	�� 	����	����	������� 9	
	

�7�	 ��	���	������
��� 	����	����	���	���	��	������	�� ��	����	��	�������	
�� 	*������'	����	���� 	�������"�	����"	
��
��	��	��"�"�	����	
���	 ���������	
������9	
	

�'�	 ���'	���	����"	������ 	���	����	���	�������5�	��&�����	
�������	��	
 �&���
	������	
�����	

	
���	�������	
�����	���	*������	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	���
����������	�����	
����� � 	8	
	

�	 ��&����	�� "��9	
�	 ��
����	
��"�����9	
�	 ������"��	
����������9	
�	 ������"	�������	�� 	��&�����9	
�	 
����������	����"�����9	
�	 ������"��	������"	 ���&����	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

���	
		

���'	���	���������	����"	�� ����'��	��	���'	��	�����	����"������	
����	 ��	 ���	 �
�����	 ���	 ���	��&��	������9	 ����	 ���&����	 
��&� � 	
����������	���	��	������	
��&� � 	��	���	���� 	������9	
	

���	
		

���'	���� 	��	�� ����'��	����	 �&���
���	��	���'	��	���	����� 	
�����	������	���	����	�� 	����	��� 	���� 	��	���	�������9	�	������"	
���� 	��	��� 	����	'��	��

�����	��	����"	������ 	���	����	
����"�A����� ����	������"9		
	

���	 ��� ��"	���	��"�����	�����������	���� 	��	��	����� ����	����	����	
����5�	�� "��9	����	�;���	��� ��"	
��&� � 	��	�������	-�&�������	
��	4266A64	���	���	�&�������	��	4264A61�9	
	

���	 ���	 ��
����	 
��"�����	 ���� 	 ���	 ����� �	 ����� � 	 ��
����	
��&�������	
���������	���	���	�����
������	�� 	�
�������	����������	
)�����	���� 	��	������"	��	 ������	����	�����	��������	

	
���	�������	
�����	���	���� ���	�� 	.���"	$��
��	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	
���
����������	�����	����� � 	8	
	
	

Page 3



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

�	 ���� ���5�	������	����9	
�	 � �
����	�� 	��������"9	
�	 ���
�����	��������"9	
�	 �������	�� 	�����"���	����� ��"	"�&�����"	������9	
�	 �����	�����	 �&���
����9	
�	 �����	���&���9	
�	 �����	�����&������	�� 	
��&�������	

	
�
�	 ��	���	������
��� 	����	���	��������	
������	���� 	���
	��	 �&���
		�	

'��	
����	��	���'	��	�����������"	�	������������"	���&���	���	
���� ���	�� 	� ���	���&����9	
	

�:�	 ���'	���	����"	�� ����'��	��	����&���	���'	��	���	����������	
�����"������	���	&���������	���� ���	��	� ������ 9	
	

���	 ��	 �� ��	 ��	 �  ����	 ���	 ��'���	 ��
���	 ��	 ���	 �������	 ������	 ��	
���'� 	 �����	 ���� ����	���'	���	 ����"	 ������ 	���	 ��	 ��������	 ���	
������	��	��	�����	����������	

	
���	�������	
�����	���	���	(�&��������	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	
���
����������	�����	����� � 	8	
	

�		  �&���
����	
������"9	
�	 �����	����"������	��������"	�� 	������	�������"9	
�	 
��'�	����� ��"	
���"���� �	�� 	"����	�
����9	
�	 
�����	
���������	���&����	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

���	 �����	����	�	������	��	�����	�����������	����	�� 	������ 	�� 	
��
������� 	��	����"�	��

��	���
���9	���	�������	���	���������	
���'��"	��	�����	�� ���9	
		

���	
		

���	�
�����	���	����"�	��

����	����	���������	����"	�;
���� 9	

���	
		

��	�� ��	��	�� ���	���	���'��"	��	����	���'�	������	���	�����	�'����	
������	���	�;�����"	���'�����	����	����"	������� 9	����'�	���� 	��	
���
���� 	��	���	�� 	��	��"���	4264	���	���	�����	��	���	B��������	
����59	
	

�&�	 
���������
	���'��"	���� 	��������	����	���	
�����	�� 	�����	
�"������	��	�����&�	���	��"��	�������	�������	���	��"��	����	
�������	�� 	���	������	��
���	��	�������	������9	
	

���	 �	&���	��	���	�����������	���� 	��	�� �	����	���	��"��	 �������	
���	'����	���	���� 	���	��	�

��
�����	��	�������	��	����	���"��9	
	

�;�	 ��������&��	��	�����	�����	�����������	����	����"	�;
���� 	��	�� ��	��	
�����&�	���	��������"	�����9	�����	����� � 	�	����	��

���	������	
�� 	��� 	�����9	

Page 4



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

	
���	 ���	 �������	 ���� 	 ���'	 ��	 
���������
	 ����	 ���	 ���&������	 �� 	

��� ��� �	��	���'	���	�	����������	��	���	������	��	�������	����	���	
����	 ���	 ���	 ����������	 ����	 ��� ����	 ��&� 	 ���	 ��	 �����	
������� �����9	 ��� ���	 ��	 �����	 ���&������	 ������	 ���� 	 ��	
��&����"��� ��	

	
���	�������	
�����	���	�����
���	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	���
����������	
�����	����� � 	8	
	

�	 �����
���	
�������	�� 	
���� ����9	
�	 �����������	�����
���9	
�	 ��"�����9	
�	 �����	��� "�	�� 	���
����	*�����	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

�@�	
		

��&����	 ������"�	 �� 	 ����	 ��� 	 ����	 ���	 �������5�	 ��"�����	
�����������	�����	 ��	�� ��	��	��"�"�	����	����	���	���
�����&�	
�������	�����9	
	

����	
		

���	�������	���	���������	���'��"	��	����	��	��������"	
��
��	����	
 �����������	 ��	 ��&�	 ����� 	 ���	 �����	 ����	 ��	 ���������"	 ���	
�����������	��	���	������	�� 	
��&� ��"	 ��

� 	'����9	
	

����	 ���'	���	���������	����"	�� ����'��	��	�����	��	�"�������	����	
���	���	����5�	
$�	��	��
��&�	��������&���	��	���	�����	

	
���	�������	
�����	���	$�����	+�����	�� 	� ���	,�����	����	
��&� � 	��	�&��&���	��	���	
�����	��	���
����������	�����	����� � 	8	
	

�	 
�����	������9	
�	 � ���	������	�� 	������	����	����� ��"�	�� ��	
��
��5�	���&�����	������	

����	 ���&�����	 
�������	  ���������	 ���&�����	  ��"	 �� 	 �������	 ���&����	
�� 	�������"	 �����������9	

�	 7����	������	�� 	������	����	������������"9	
�	 ������	�� 	��������"�	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

����	 ���	/� ��	$�����5�	�������	��
������� 	�	
�� "�	��	�� ��	
��
��	
�� 	 �	 ���������	 ���	 ���	 �������	 ��	 �������	 ���	 ���� �� �	 �� 	
&�����	����	����� 	��	�;
���� 9	
	

�  �	
		

���������	����	�� 	��������	���&����	���� 	��	��� 	��	� ������	
�����	
��
��	���	��� � 	�����������	�� 	� &���	��	��������9	
	

����	
		

���	 �������	 ���	 ���������	 ���'��"	 ��	 ���'	 ������	 ����	 ���	
$�������	 ���������	 +�����	 ����	 ��	 �������	 
��
��	 ��	 ��&�	 ��	
�����	���	�����	���	���"���	

Page 5



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

���	�������	
�����	���	���
�����&��	�� 	���������	%�&���
����	
��&� � 	��	
�&��&���	��	���	�����	��	���
����������	�����	����� � 	8	
	

�	 ������	�����
����	��

���	�� 	 �&���
����	������ ��"	���	��	�������	
�������9	

�	 ����>������	����&����9	
�	 ���������	������9	
�	 ����������	���'��"9	
�	 ���������	�� 	���"�������� 	 �&���
����9	
�	 �������������	

	
���	��������"	���
�����	����	
��&� � 	��	:��������	����� 	��	�������	8	
	

����	 ���	�����	��"����	��
���� 	��	���	���������	�� 	�����������	
$����	��	���	�
���	4264	������"	�� 	����	���	���"��9	����&���	��	���	
��
���� 	����	�����	��"����	����	���	��	���"��9	���'	���	���������	
����"	�� ����'��	����	���	
�����	��	�  ����	�������"��"	�������	����	
��	���	�� ������	��	
�����	��������	�� 	�� "���	��������"	���	��������	
��	���	$�����	�� 	�����	������������9	
		

�""�	
		

���	 ����>������	 ����&����	 ���"���	 ����	 ���������	 ����"	 ���	 ������	
���	 ����9	 �	 �����	 
����	 �������"	 ��	 ����>������	 ����&����	 �� 	 ����	
�����"� 	��	�� ��	��	��&���	���	
������9	����	
��������	����	���� 	
��	��	���'	��	���	��	 ���	����	����>������	����&����	��	����	����	���	
)�������"	���	�� 	���	��������&�	?�
���	$������9	
	

����	
		

���	 ��������	 ��	 ������	 �����
�����	 ���� 	 ������	 ���	 
������	 ��	 ��	
����&���� 	������	���	����9	���'	���	���������	����"	�� ����'��	��	
��&����"���	���	��������	��	�	������	�����
����	��	%�&��
����	

	
���	/&��&���	�� 	,�������	
���"�����	���� 	�"��� 	��	�������� 	���	��������"	
�������� ������	��	��������	����	>	
	

�6�	 ���	
��"����	��	���	���'	�����	���	7���	��	���7���	��	�	��;	�����	
�&��������	��	���	-�����	�� 	$���
�����	/&��&���	�� 	,�������	
$����9	
		

�4�	 ���	 
�� ������	 ��	 ��	 ������	 
���	 ���	 �������� 	 &����	 ��"����������	
����� ��"	 7����	 ���'	 ����	 ���	 ���&�������	 �����	 ��"���	 � �������	
������������	�� 	����	�������9	
	

�1�	
		

���	 �������	 ���'	 �� 	 
������	 
�������5	 �"��� 	 �

�������	 ��	 ���	
���
�����&�	 �������	 ������	 ����� ��"	 �����	 ��	 ���&���	  ���&���	

��������	����	��	����9	
	

�0�	
		

���	 �������	 
��&� �	 �������	 �����	 ���	 ���	 ����	 ����	 �������	 ���	
��� �	 ��	 ���	 ��"��	 ����	 �������	 �"�����	 ���	 ������	 ��
����	 ��	
�������	������9		
	
	

Page 6



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"
������#�$
���%&'%	

�=�	 ���	�������	�"���	����	���	/&��&���	�� 	,�������	
���"�����	
���� 	�	�����	���	���	��
��	����	���	 �&���
����	��	���	����5�	���� 	

�&����	������"�9	
	

�C�	 ������	��;	������	���� 	
�&����	��	$�������	����	��	 ����� 	��	
��������	��������"	�

��
�����	�������������	����� ��"	��������	��	���	
���� ���5�	�����	���� 	�� 	����"��	��	�������9	����	����	�����	
��������	��	��	��'��	����	����	����� 	���	���� ����	��	���� 	
�&����9	
	

�3�	 ���	�������	
��&� �	�������	����	���	/� ��	$��
��5�	����"��	��	�	
�����	���&����	������	����	�	������	����	��������&�9	
	

�D�	 �����"��	��
����	��	"�&��	��	���	����"�	��

��	���
���	��������&��	��	

��&� �	���	��������	
�������	������	��	�����	��	����	
�&����9	
	

�E�	 ��	���	�
����	��	�
��	"�&��������	�������	��&����	���	�������	
�������� �����	��	����	���� �	��	����"	������ 	
��
�����	��	��	
���	��	���	����� � 	��
����	��&�������	
���������	���	��	����� ��� 	
��	�	�����
�����	���	
����	��	��� ��"	�������"	�&�������9	
	

�62�	 ���	 �������	 ��	 ��'� 	 ��	  ����������	 ����	 
����	 ���	 ��	 
����	 ��	
������	�	������	�� 	��������	����������	���	&���������	���� ���	��	
� ������ �	

	
���� �.������*�& ������

	
�����	����	��	�����	��	�;��
�	���������	
	
	
	
	

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
���
	��
��������������������

����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
�
�

��
	��
��������������������
�

����� !"�
�
����������	
��	��
������	��	���	������	
����������	�������	����	������	
�����������	������	������	���������	�����������	���	����������	��������	���	�� ��	
�����������	���	����������	!����

�	�� ����	"�����	
�������	
��
���	#��������	��$	
%�&����	
	
�
���&���	���	�������'	�����������	�������	!����

�	�� ��	��$	
��	#��$���	
	
����	��	�����$����'		!���	����	�(��$	��	�����	�������������	#��)�	�����	�!��$���	
!��������	
���&����	���	(����	����������	��������	���	���������	��$	*� ���������	
����������	!��������	��������	
�����	���	���
����� ��	��$	���������	
�� ���
������	*����	!������	�(��$	��	!������	!����������	��$	!���������
��	��$	(����	
%��&��	�����������	��

���	+��������	
	
���	������&	������$	��	,
�	��$	�������$	��	-
��	
	
�����������	
�
�������
������������
������
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������
�������������
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
�����������
�������
�
����������������������	
	

���� #�$%&�&!'� ���(�' !����!���
	
�����	����	��	$�����������	��	��������	��$�	��	�����������	��	�����$����	����	���	��$�	��	
���$����	
	

���� �' )!�����
	
�&���$	����	���	�������	��	���	������&	���$	��	./	"���	.01.	���	��������$	��	�	�������	
�����$�	
	

���� $*&'�+��)�,� !��)�' ������
	
���	�����	
�� �$�$	�	
��&����	�
$���	��	���	�$$�������	������&	��	���	(�����	��$	�$���	
������	����	!����	����$���$	���	.-	��
������	.01.	��	�����$��	���	�����	��	��&�����	
���	
	
���	�����	�������	�$ ���$	����	��	��$	����	���	���������	���	���	����2�	
!�	��	�����$	���	

�� �������	������&	��	���	����$	����$���$	���	13	��
������	.01.�	(��� ���	$��	��	�	
$������	$�����	��	���	(����	��	�������	��	����	$���	������	������)	
!	����$	���	����	
��	�����$�		4�	���	���������	
��
���$	��	������$���	���	������&	���	5��$��	.1	��
������	
.01.	��	3��	��	10��	��	�����	����	������	������)	
!	��$	+�� ��	��� ���	
!	��	�����$�	
	
���	����$	�&���$	��	���$	���	������&	����	���	����2�	
!�	��	5��$��	.1	��
������	.01.	��	
3��	��	10���	

Public Document PackPage 9



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

���� !�&$-' ,�#�$'�'� ����
	
���	����$	�����$���$	���	����$���	��	$��������	��$�	��$	����$	���	������	
��������	
	
���	����$	�&���$	����	�����	����
�������	����	����������	����&	
��
��	����	�
�����	
�$���������	���$�	��$	$�����������	����	��	&�����&	��
��������	��	���� �$	����	���	���)	

��&������	���	���	
�����	��	����$���	��$	6���&	!��
��	��$	*�����	��$	!���
�����	��$	��	
�����$�$	��	����$2�	���)	
��&������	
	

���� $&%%.' ����
	
�����	����	��	����7���	���	�����$�������	��	����	������&�	
	

���� )�,� !��/�$)!'0��#�$'�'� ����
	
�����	����	��	��&���	�8����� �	$��������	��	�����$��	��	����	������&�	
	

�	�� (���&�#��%& ���
	
���	����$	����$	���	���	�$$������	��	���	5�����$	!����	��	�������	9	
	


	 �� �������	��	��������	��������������	��$	4��	����	��������������:	
		


	 ������&�		���	���	
����������	��	���	�������2�	����&�	��;���������	
���	���	��8�	����	�����:	
	


	
		

��	
������	�	��������)	���	����&����	��
����	��$	���������	
���
������	���	!�������	����	�������	���
�����	
��
����:	
		


	 ������������&	
���	���	���	!�������	��������	�����	!���������
:	
	


	 �������	������&�:	
	


	 ������	���$��&	�������	
	
���	�����	�8
�����$	$���

��������	����	���	������������	
����$	���	�� ����	��	���	���	
������$	
���	�����	$�$	���	�����	���	
��	$�������	��������	��	��	��$����)���		�����;����	��	
���	������&	���	<����	�����������	�=8����� �	�����&�������	�
�����&�	��$	������	��	
4�����������	=�&���$	>�&��������	.01.	��$	����	��
�������$�		?��	$��������	����$	��	

�������$	.@	�����	���)��&	$���	������	���	$�������	���	��$�	������$	��	1,	$����	
	
���	����$	�&���$	����	���	�������	������&�	��	�����$�$	��	���	���������	��$	
�����������	+ �� ���	��$	��������	!����2�	���)	
��&�����	���	���	������&	����$���$	���	
A	#� �����	.01.�	
	
���	����$	��������$�$	����	���	�������	
�����	��	��;�����$	��	�������	����	���	
�����������	��&��$��&	���	�������	������&�	��	��$��	���	�����������2	���$���)	��	��	
������$�$	��	���	���������	��$	�����������	!����	������&	��	A	#� �����	.01.�	
	
���	����$	�&���$	��	����� �	�	�������&	
�
��	��	���	������	5��$��&	>������	

Page 10



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

���� ��$���� #&!'� ����
	
���	����$	��$����$	��$	�&���$	���	��������&	��������$������	9	
	
����$���	��$	6���&	!��
��2�	9	
	

�1�	 �������	13�	��	�����$�	���	��������&	�����	��	���	���)	
��&�����	
9	

	 
������	 ������	 ����������	 ��	 �����$�	 �����$���	 ������	

����������:	

	 ������	�����
���	��	��	����&��	������$	��	��
������	.01.:	

	 ���
����	 �

���������	 ���	 ����$���	 ��$	 ����&	 
��
��	 ��$	 ���	

��7��$�������	��	�����������	����	�����&	
��������	
	
(�����	��$	�$���	������	����	9	
	

�.�	 �������	13�	$���&���$	���������	��	&� ��	��	���	����$2�	<��$	+�������	
��	 ������������	����	 ���	������	 ����	�����	 ��$	 ���	 �

�������	 ���$	
������	 ��	 �&���	 ���	 
��B���	 ����������	 $�������	 ���	 ���	 �������	
������&��	

	
���	����$	����$	���	��������$�����	����	�������	����	���	$� ���
����	��	���	
�����	��$	

��������	���	���	���������	>�&��	��	�������&�	����$	��	��������$	��	� �� ���	��$	
��������	���	�	
��	$��������	
	

���� $���) '!1��',*!�!��$*&%%� ,����
	
���	���������	��������	���	���������	��$	*� �������	��������$	�	��
���	��$	&��$����	��	
���������	��&��	��	�������&�	�����	�������$	���	��������&	9	
	

���	 
���	��	���	<�������	���	.011	�������&	��	���	���������	��&��	��	
�������&�	����	����	������	��	.A	"���	.01.:	��	���	����	�����	����	
���	��

�����&	��&��������	����	������$	��$	$����	&��$����	���	

�������$:	
	

���	 ���	���������	��&��	��	�������&�	��;����$	���	�������	���	�	���� ���	
�����������	��	�����$��	�8
��������	��	��������	��	�������&	���	�	
���� ���	��� ���	����	���� ���	��$���:	�����	���	�8
�������	��	
��������	���	����
��$�	���	�������	��$	��	�����	���	�	
����������	
�8������	���	���	��� ���:	
	

���	 ���	���	$�$	���	&� �	��	���������	��&��	��	���	��&���������	
�8
������&	��	��������	��	$��� ��	���	��� ����	���	���	��	&��������$	
����	���	��&���������	����$	��	����������	��	���	
����������	
�8������:	
	

�$�	 ���	���� ���	��$���	����	����$	��	����	��	������	�8
��������	��	
��������	���	9	
	

	 
	 �	 ��������	��	���������	��$�:	

Page 11



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

	 
	 �	 ��$�	 ��	 
������	 ��	 �	 �����	 ����������$	 ���	 ����������	

��
����	����:	

	 
	 �	
�����	�������:	
	 
	 ���	��	����	����	�������	��
������:	
	 
	 ���	�����	
�����	��	��$�	�
������$	��	���	���������	��	�����:	

	
���	 ��������&	���	�������	$�������	��	���������	��&��	��	�������&�	

��)��	��	���	������&	���$	��	1,	��&���	.01.�	��	�&���$	����	
��	
$�������	��������	����$	��	��$����)��	��	���	$� ���
����	��	���	

�����	��$	
������	��	����	�
������	�����	9	
		

	 ���	 
��$������	 ��	 �	 ���
������� �	 ��$	 ���)����	 ���������	

���	���������&	�8
��������	��	��������:	
	


	 ���	$������������	��	����	�$$�������	�����������	����$	��	
��;����$	��	�����	���������&	�8
��������	��	��������:		
		


	 ���	������&	��	�	���������	���	��)��&	�	$�������	��	
�8
��������	��	��������:	
		


	 ���	������&	��	�	���������	���	�	
����������	�8�������	
	
C��������	����	�����$	��	���	����$	�����	�������$	��	���	�����������	��	���	
��������$������	�������&	��	���	�� �	�
������	�����	��	�������	9	
	

���	 ���	���������	���	���	�����
�	��	�8
��������	��	��������	7	�����	����	
�	������	��	�
�����	���	�	���������	9		
	

	 
	 �� �	��	���������	��$	��)�	�8
��������	���	���	��� ���	��	���	
����'	

	 
	 ���	�
������	$����	���	��	�8
�������	��	��������	���	���	��� ���:	
	 
	 ���	�
������	$����	���	$��������	��� ����:	

	
	 ����	�����������	��$	�	���&��	
����$	�&��������	�	������	����	�	����:	

������	��$	���	�

����������	�	����:	
	

�&�	 ���	� ��������	��	�8
��������	��	��������	9	
	

	 ��	���	&��$	
�������	���	���	� ��������	��	���$���	���	�8��
��	���	��	
�$���������� �	
�������	��	��	��$����)��	��	��������:	���	� ��������	
��	�8
��������	��	���������	���	�	�������	�8������	���	�	
��������	��
��	
����$	��	���
���	��	�	�����	��	�������&�:	
	

	 ������	���	�8
�������	��	��������	��$	�	
���������	��
���	��	�	
�
������	���$�	����	���	���$	�����������	�����$	��	��������$�:	
	

	 ���	
��������&	+������	����$	����	���)	�$ ���	����	�����	��������	
�����$��&	��
��������� ��	����	5�������	(>�	!�����������	!��
����	
��$	������	��	�

��
�����	��	���	
���������	�8
�������	��	��������:	
	

Page 12



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

���	 $�$	���	�������	����	��	��;����	�$$�������	�����������	��	��	�����$�$	
��	��	�8
�������	��	��������	9	
	

	 ��	���	�
��	��	���	�������	��	��;����	�$$�������	������������	
������&�	��$��	���	����	���	
�����	��	��$�	���������&	��	�8
�������	
��	��������	���	���	����&�$	��	���
��$	��	����:	
	

	 ���	����	���	�������	;���������&	�������$�$	���	
��������	��	���	
�������	��������	��	�� ����������	����7����&	��$	���	��	�8
�������	
��	��������	����$	���
��	����	���	�������2�	���
�����	
���	��$	 �����	
���	���	����:	
	

���	 ������&	���	��8����	����	���	���
��$��&	��	��	�8
�������	��	
��������	9	
	

	 ��	���	�������	��	�$$�������	���������	��	���
��$	��	���	�8
��������	
��	���������	��������	����$	���$	���	��8����	����	��	���
��$:	���	
��8����	������$	����	����	D0	$���	����	���	������&	��	���	
����$	
���	�����������	��	�8
��������	��	��������:	
	

�B�	 ����	���	���	����	
����$	�������	����
���&	��	�8
�������	��	
��������	��$	���	�������&	��	���	
����������	�8������:	
	

	 ���	����	
����$	������	���������&	�	
����������	�8������	����$	
$�
��$	��	 ���	 ��
�	��$	���
��8���	��	 ���	 ��� ���	 �� �� �$�	���	 ��	
���	
��)�&�$	��$	����	
����������	��&����	�

���$	��&	$�	���	=E	
�����	�

����	

	
���	����$	�&���$	��	��������$	�

�� ��	��	���	��������&	��������$������	��	�������	7	
	

�1�	 ���	�������	����� �	�8
��������	��	��������	���	���	��� ���	�����	�	
����	���	���	������	��	5�������	��$	��&����:		
		

�.�	 ���	�8
��������	��	��������	���	�

�� �$�	��B����$	��	����$�$	��	
���	
��������&	+������	��	������������	����	���	�������	
�����	���	
���
����� ��	��$	���������	�� ���
����:		�����	���	�8
�������	
��	��������	���	�	
���������	��
���	��	�	�
������	���$�	����	���	���$	
�����������	�����$	����	��	��������$:	
		

�D�	
		

���	�8
�������	��	��������	�����$	�����$�	���	��������&	�$$�������	
��;�����	���	�����������	7	
		
���	 �8
����	���	�	�����	�����	����$�	���)�����	����$	��	���������$		

��$	&��������$:	
���	 �$������	����	���	���	
����� �	��
����	��	��	����&��	��	���	�����	

�������:	
���	 �����	�����	���	��������	����$	��	����&�$	����:	
�$�	 ���	����$	���	��$	������	���
������	����	���	!�����	��� ����	

�������	������	���	.01.:	
	

Page 13



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

���	 �8
����	���	��	����$	��

���	���	�������2�	���
�����	
���	��$	
 �����	���	���	����:	
	

�,�	
		

���	��8����	���
����	����	���	���
��$��&	��	�8
��������	��	
��������	����	��	D0	$���	����	���	��$	��	5�������F��&���:	
		

�/�	 ��	 ������&	 ���	 ����	 ���	 ���	 ������������	 ��	 ���	 
����������	
�8�������	���	�������	�������	���	�������	
����������	�����	�����	���	
�

��
�����	���	���	
���������	�8
�������	��	��������:	
	

�-�	 ����	���	
�����	��$	
������	��	�� ����$	�����	1.	�������	
	

�
�� ��%(&�����(������
	
���	�����	�$ ���$	����	���	��$	��)�$	���	!����	������	��	�����$��	���	
���������	��
���	
����	���	%������	>�����	���	����$	�� �	��	�����	�����	��	���
�����������	
	

���	 ���	�����	��	����$���	��$	6���&	!��
��	��
����$	��	���	�����	
�����	����$	��	��
����$	��	���	������	9	
		

	 ��	��������	��	����	������	�����	���$&�����	�������:	

	 ��������	��	$���	��	������	�� ��	������F ������:	

	 ������������	�����&	
��
���:	

	 $�������	 ������	��������:	

	 ���������	��	����$���	��	����:	

	 ����$����	����������	��	
��	����	�	
��
������	��	���$�$	�����&�	

=����	6�����:	

	 ������	��&����������	������	��$	��� ����	��	�������:	

	
���	 ���	�����	��	��

���	��� ����	��
����$	��	���	�����	�����	����$	

��	��
����$	��	���	������	9	
		

	 �� ����	��$	��������	��� ���	���B��	����&��	
��
���$	��	����	

����	 ����	 ����	 ��
���	 ����	 ���	 �������	 ��
�	 ������&F�����	
������&	 ����������	 ������������	 ��	 �������	 ��8	 ��������	
������������	��	��������	�����:	
	


	 ��&��	 ��� ����	 ���������	 ��	 ��
��$	 $����	 ����	 ��	 �������	 ��8	
���$��&	��	��������$	�����	�����:	
	


	 ��������	��� ����	���
���	��	 ��������$	$����$	���	 ���������	
��� ����	���	�$ ���	��� �����:	
	


	 ��������������	��8����� �	��������������	����	�����	��$	
����������:	
	


	 �������&	��;���������	��8����� �	�������&	��;���������	���	
������	���������	������&�	�
��������	��$	���������	��������:	
	
	

Page 14



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	


	 4��	���
��������&	��$	�
$����&	���	�������	��$	�������&	���	
�����	��	�
������&	���	��������:	
	

����	 �	 ������	 ��	 G
��$&��2	 ������$	 ��	 �$$������&	 ��$	 ���������&	 ���	
��
����	��	���	�������	����	��	9	
	

	 
	 �	���
��&�	��	��$&��	����	��$	���	�� �� �����	��	���	
�����	
��	�����;����	��$&��	�������:	
	

	 
	 ��	
�� �$�	������	��	�������	��� ����	��	����	��������	�����:	
	

���	 ���	�����	��	*�����	��$	!���
�����	��
����$	��	���	��
���	��	���	
�������	�����	�����$�$	9	
	

	 
	 ��������	$� ���
����	
����	���	B���:	
	

	 
	 ���	������&	������&�	������	����$	������	���	$��� ���	��	���	
!�������	!����:	
	

	 
	 ���)��������	���
�� �$	���
�������	��$	���)�	������	���	
���������	��������&	���	��������$�����	����	���	���)	��$	
������	&���
�:	
	

	 
	 �����	��	���	���)	
��&�����	����$	��������	��	��	
�� ����$:	
	

�$�	 ���	�����	��	���������	��$	�����������	��
����$	��	���	�����	
�����	����$	��	��
����$	��	���	�������	����	��	9	
	

	 
	 �����:	
	 
	 ������	����)	�
�:	
	 
	 ��$&��	���������&:	
	 
	 ������	5��$:	
	 
	 ������	����� ������	��� ����:	
	 
	 
�����	����	�� �	���	��

���	��;����$�:	

	
���	 ���	�����	��	(�����	��$	�$���	������	����	��
����$	��	���	�����	

�����	����$	��	��
����$	��	���	�������	����	��	9	
	

	 
	 $�����$	$������&�	��	���	������	5��$	
�� ����	���	�� �	���	��	
���
����:	

	 
	 �����$�	����:	
	 
	 ������	������	��� ���	�� ���:	
	 
	 ����&��&	���	�$���	������	����:	
	 
	 ��
���	��	$�����	
������	��&����	

		
	
	
	
	

Page 15



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#���$�������%&'%	

	
���� ���-����,�&�������

	
���	���)	
��&������	��	���	+ �� ���	��$	��������	
���&�����	����$	��$	��������	

�����	����	�����$���$	��$	�&���$	��	��������$�	���B���	��	���	���������	��	$����	���	���	

���&�����	����$	��	����	����	���	<��$��	��$	�����	=8����� �	��	�	;��������	������	

���� ���2�$!�' '!'&!'� �#�$)�� !��3�'#�4���
	
���	����$	�����$���$	��$	�&���$	���	��������&	
��B���	����������	$�������	9	
	


	 >� ���	��	�����$���$	���	������	��$	�����&�	���)����&�		
	

���� �/���!��)�' ������
	
�����	����	��	�����	��	�8��
�	���������	
	
	
	
	

Page 16



 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 2012/13 
3 October 2012 
TRACKING DECISIONS 
Grey = Completed 
 
Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action 
by 

Progress Target 
date 

Min 13. 
13.06.12 

Task and Finish Update/Reports 
The Board agreed to undertake a task and finish group to 
explore how successful young people with special 
educational needs and disabilities are in gaining 
employment. 
 

 GP/JG/GP 
Lead 
officers 

Agreed at the meeting held on 8 August 
2012 that this should be a joint task and 
finish group with Children and Young 
People, Health and Adult Social Care and 
Growth and Prosperity. 
Completed. 

 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 17



Min 22. 
25.07.12 
 

Recommendations 
The Board endorsed and agreed the following 
recommendations – 
 
Customers and Communities 
 
(minute 6) persons with the relevant knowledge and 
expertise would be invited prior to commencement of 
task and finish groups and co-opted as and when 
appropriate. 
 
Children and Young People 
 
(minute 3) the appointment of co-opted representatives. 
(minute 6) the changes to its terms of reference. 
 
Health and Adult Social Care 
 
(minute 4) the appointment of co-opted representative. 
 
Support Services 
 
(minute 4) appointment of co-opted representatives 
 

 HW/ 
DSOs 

 
 
 
Fed back to panel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fed back to panel. 
 
 
 
 
Fed back to panel. 
 
 
 
Fed back to panel. 
Completed 

 

Min 24. 
25.07.12 

Terms of Reference 
The board noted the amendments to the panel’s terms of 
reference and recommended them to be submitted to 
the next city council meeting for approval. 
 

 HW Approved by Full Council on 24 
September 2012. 
Completed 

24 
September 
2012 

Min 25. 
25.07.12 
 

Co-opted Representatives 
The Board agreed to seek information as to how the 
council supported people with disabilities when seeking 
advice at First Stop. 

 HW  To be circulated outside of the business 
meeting. 

 

P
age 18



Min 26. 
25.07.12 

Work Programme 
The Chair advised that a separate meeting with the 
Chairs of panels, lead officers and democratic support 
officers would be held to discuss and agree the work 
programmes for 2012/13. 
 

 HW The work programmes for the Board 
and the Panels were agreed at the 
meeting held on 8 August 2012 
(information previously circulated). 
Completed 

8 August 
2012 

Min 27. 
25.07.12 

Project Initiation Documents 
The Board agreed the following project initiation 
documents – 
 
●  social fund replacement; 
●  finance and performance. 
 
The library modernisation project initiation document  
was also agreed but subject to a review of the objectives  
 

 HW  
 
 
Fed back to panel 
 
 
Fed back to panel (Giles Perritt to 
review the PID and provide comments 
to Lead Officer Customers and 
Communities). 
Completed 
 

 
 
 
September 
2012 
 
 
September 
2012 

Min 35. 
05.09.12 

Chair’s Urgent Business 
The Board agreed to hold the meeting with the city’s MPs 
on Friday 21 September 2012 at 9am – 10am. 
 

 HW Meeting was held with the city’s MPs on 
21 September 2012. 
Completed 

September 
2012 

Min 36. 
05.09.12 

Tracking Decisions 
The Board agreed that youth unemployment (how 
successful young people with special educational needs 
and disabilities were in gaining employment) is removed 
from the panels work programmes for Children and 
Young People and Growth and Prosperity and is included 
on the Board’s work programme. 
 
This is subsequent to minute 13 (26 June 2012). 
 

 HW/ 
DSOs 

 
Fed back to panel. 
 
Included item on the Board’s work 
programme 
Completed 

 
October 
2012 

P
age 19



Min 39. 
05.09.12 

Forward Plan 
The Board agreed that the Tenancy Strategy is included 
on the Customers and Communities OSP’s work 
programme for its meeting scheduled for 7 November 
2012. 
 

 HW/ 
DSOs 

Fed back to Panel. 
Completed 

September 
2012 

Min 39. 
05.09.12 

Forward Plan 
The Board recommended that the Cabinet Member is 
requested to consult with all councillors regarding the 
Tenancy Strategy in order for councillors’ feedback to be 
forwarded to the Customers and Communities Panel 
meeting on 7 November 2012. 
 

 HW Completed September 
2012 

Min 39. 
05.09.12 

Forward Plan 
The Board agreed to receive a briefing paper on the 
school funding reform. 
 

 HW Briefing note to be circulated outside of 
the meeting. 

September
2012 

P
age 20



Min 41. 
05.09.12 

Community Right to Challenge 
The Board agreed to recommend approval of the 
following recommendations to Cabinet – 
 
1. the council receive expressions of interest for any 
service twice a year (in the months of February and 
August); 
 
2. the expressions of interest are approved, rejected or 
amended by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Cooperatives and Community 
Development; where the expression of interest has a 
particular impact on a specific ward, then the ward 
councillors should be consulted; 
 
3. the expression of interest should include the following 
additional requests for information – 
 

(a)  explain how a local (city based) workforce would 
be maintained and guaranteed; 
 

(b)  identify what are the positive impacts to be 
brought to the local economy; 
 

(c)  state where the contract would be managed from; 
 

(d)  how would the bid ensure compliance with the 
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012; 
 

(e)  explain how you would support the council’s 
corporate plan and vision for the city; 
 

4. the maximum response time for responding to 
expressions of interest will be 30 days from the end of 
February/August; 
 
 

  The recommendations will be consider 
by Cabinet at its meeting on 16 October 
2012. 

16 
October 
2012 

P
age 21



 5. in setting the time for the commencement of the 
procurement exercise, the council follows its current 
procurement rules which are appropriate for the 
particular expression of interest; 
 
6. that the policy and process is reviewed after 12 
months.  
 

    

Min 44. 
05.09.12 

Project Initiation Document (PIDS) 
The Board agreed the review of subsidised bus routes 
and through ticketing PID. 

 HW/ 
DSOs 

Fed back to Panel September
2012 

 

P
age 22



 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY 
DECISIONS / PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 (25 SEPTEMBER 2012) 

 
 
 
 
 

LIST OF KEY DECISIONS 
 

Reference Title Decision Maker and Date of Decision 

I052662 THE CONTINUED PROVISION OF 
SCHOOL MEALS TO MAINTAINED 
SCHOOLS POST SCHOOL 
FUNDING POST SCHOOL 
FUNDING REFROM 

Cabinet (on the recommendation of 
Councillor Williams) 16 October 2012 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 23



 

 

  
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 
LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS) (ACCESS TO 

INFORMATION) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2012 
 

NOTICE OF KEY DECISION 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Williams) is 
to be asked to make a key decision on 16 October 2012 in respect of the following: 
 
TITLE: THE CONTINUED PROVISION OF SCHOOL MEALS TO MAINTAINED 
SCHOOLS POST SCHOOL FUNDING POST SCHOOL FUNDING REFROM 
 
PURPOSE OF DECISION:  
 
As a consequence of the changes to school funding in relation to national School Funding Reform 
requirements form April 2013 including the delegation of central services to schools a decision is 
required concerning the options for the continued provision of a centrally delivered school meals 
service from 1 April 2013. 
 
DECISION REFERENCE: I052662 
 
The Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Williams) will be considering a report 
prepared by the Director for People.  A copy of the report and any other documents will 
be available for inspection at First Stop, Civic Centre, Plymouth PL1 2AA. 
 
Further information can be obtained from Brad Pearce, Education Catering Manager 
Children's Services, Windsor House Tel: (01752) 307159 brad.pearce@plymouth.gov.uk 
 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS) (MEETINGS 
AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2012 

 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE 

 
Notice is hereby given in accordance with Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 that the 
meeting is likely to move into private session to consider the decision for the reasons 
outlined below: 
 
Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public may be 
excluded from the meeting for the business on the grounds that it may involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act, as amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

 

Page 24



 

1  

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Performance and Finance Report (including Capital 

Programme update) 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    11 September 2012 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member:   CMT 

Author: David Northey, Head of Finance 

 Patrick Hartop, Policy and Performance Officer 

Contact:    Tel:  (01752) (30)4942 
    e-mail: david.northey@plymouth.gov.uk 

patrick.hartop@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    fin/djn07/12 

Key Decision:   No 

Part: I    

 
 
Executive Summary: 
  
This report is the first monitoring report for 2012/13 and outlines the performance and finance 
monitoring position of the Council as at the end of June 2012.  
 
This report is also the first under the new Administration, and the last in its current format. It 
will be replaced by a shorter, more focused report. It will continue to focus on the overall 
financial position for the Council, but will clearly link the financial position relative to the new 
administration pledges. The report will set out the variances to the budget; explain the impact of 
the variances on the full year financial position; and most importantly set out the 
countermeasures.      
 
The primary purpose of this report is to detail how the Council is delivering against its key 
indicators in terms of performance, and its financial measures using its capital and revenue 
resources. It is deliberately strategic in focussing on key areas of performance, expenditure, and 
risk.  
 
Performance summary 
 
Performance indicators used in this report represent Plymouth City Council’s contribution to 
delivering the citywide priorities of Growth, Aspiration, Inequalities and Value for Communities.  
 
The overall performance position at the end of the first quarter is as follows; 50% of our 
performance indicators monitored in year are on track, with a further 25% just off track. 
Therefore, despite the difficult circumstances we are currently facing, we can report 75% of our 
performance indicators are there or there about on target.  
 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 25



 

2  

 
Finance summary - Revenue 
 
The Council is currently forecasting a revenue over spend at year end of £1.789m against a net 
revenue budget of £203.765m. This equates to a net spend of £205.554m which is a variance of 
0.9%. This assumes no corrective action, in fact officers have been tasked with working with the 
relevant portfolio holders to identify options for delivering a balanced budget 
 
 
Table 1 End of year revenue forecast 
 
 Latest 

Approved 
Budget £000 

 
Forecast Outturn 

£000 

 
Variance 

 £000 

Total General Fund Budget 203,765 205,554 1,789 

 
Finance summary – Revenue Delivery Plans 
 
Work continues to progress the revenue delivery plans set out for 2012/13, with details within 
each directorate section of the report. 
 
Finance summary - Capital 
 
In the budget report taken to full Council in Feb 2012, the 2012/13 Capital Programme stood at 
£51.121m.  Following approval of new schemes, re-profiling and variations at Full Council in April 
and June 2012, the capital programme for 2012/13 was £58.379m however the latest forecast at 
the end of June 2012, is now £59.943m. Full details are contained in Section 3.5 and Table 5.   
      
 
Corporate Plan 2012-2015:   
 
This quarterly report is fundamentally linked to delivering the priorities within the Council’s 
Corporate Plan.  Allocating limited resources to key priorities will maximise the benefits to the 
residents of Plymouth. 
          
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Robust and accurate financial monitoring underpins the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Forecast is updated regularly based on on-going 
monitoring information. 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The reducing revenue and capital resources across the public sector has been identified as a key 
risk within our Strategic Risk register. Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken on the 
Delivery Plans that underpin the 2012 13 budget. 

Page 26



 

3  

 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
That Cabinet:- 
 

1. Note the forecasted overspend for the year against budget of £1.789m and the 
performance contents of this report, and ensure Portfolio Holders and Officers continue 
to work closely together to improve performance and take corrective action to deliver a 
balanced budget position. 
 

2. Approve the re-profiling and variations (reductions) of (£2.945)m in 2012/13 and 
(£8.576)m for future years to capital spend as detailed in Table 3 

 
3. Recommend to Full Council the new capital schemes over £0.500m for investment as 

detailed in Table 4 amounting to £4.450m in 2012/13 and £4.450m for future years. 
 

4. Approve the budget virements as detailed in Table 15 of the report 
 

5. Approve the move to a revised, more focused finance report, clearly linking the finance 
position to the new administration pledges, and setting out the countermeasures for any 
significant variances.  

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Actions are recommended in response to specific variances in either performance and / or 
finances identifed throughout the report. 

 
Background papers: 
 

· 2012 Plymouth City Council Corporate Plan 
· 2012/13 Budget Setting papers published in December 2011 
· 2012/13 Revenue & Capital Budget – February 2012 
· Joint Performance and Finance Report – June 2012 

 

 
Sign off:   

 
Fin Mc121

3.008 
Leg TH0

050 
HR MG1213/0

8001 
Corp 
Prop 

n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member M Coe 

Page 27



 

4  

Plymouth City Council  
Performance and Finance Monitoring – 2012/13 

Quarter 1 to 30 June 2012 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 With diminishing financial resources, it is fundamentally important that the Council 

maintains a clear focus on delivering progress against the identified corporate and city 
priorities, and the new administration pledges.  
 

1.2 Performance and Finance information, and associated Delivery Plans, are owned by 
Directors and their Management Teams. Much progress has been made in recent years to 
ensure that cross cutting priorities are delivered and that finance is allocated to areas of 
most importance to the public (e.g. protecting the delivery of front line services) 
 

1.3 This report outlines the progress against key performance indicators, forecasts the year 
end revenue position, provides details of progress against delivery plans and recommends 
updates to the council’s capital programme. This is the first quarterly report of the year, 
and the period of this report covers April to the end of June 2012.   

 
1.4 This report contains the following sections and Appendices:- 
  

Section ‘A’ – Executive Summary – Finance 
 

·     Revenue    
· Capital 

 
Section ‘B’ – Departmental Performance & Finance Report 
 

Section ‘C’ - Concluding Remarks 
 

Appendices 
 
· Appendix A – Finance Monitoring Summary Graph. 

 

Page 28



 

5  

 
SECTION A - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – FINANCE 

 
2. General Fund Revenue Budget  

 
2.1 Council approved a net revenue budget of £203.765m for 2012/13 at its meeting on 27 

February 2012. At the end of this first quarter, to the end of June 2012, we are reporting 
an over spend of £1.789m. Table 2 below shows the forecast year end position across 
directorates.  

 
 Table 2 End of year revenue forecasts 
 
 

DIRECTORATE 
Council 

Approved 
Budget Feb '12 

Budget 
Virements                  

Latest 
Approved 

Budget            

Forecast 
Outturn 

Monitoring 
Variation to 

30 June 
2012        

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
            
PEOPLE 122,620 1,210 123,830 124,419 589 
PLACE 42,460 476 42,936 43,743 807 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES 30,296 241 30,537 30,930 393 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 
OFFICE 1,901 366 2,267 2,267 0 
CORPORATE ITEMS 6,488 (2,293) 4,195 4,195 0 
TOTAL NET 
BUDGET 203,765 0 203,765 205,554 1,789 

 
 
2.2  Further details of the variations are outlined in the individual Directors reports in Section 

B of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.3 Delivery Plans 
 

In setting the budget for 2012/13, departmental delivery plans were agreed in order to 
achieve a balanced budget. Overall, progress has been made across the majority of these 
plans. The Red / Amber / Green (RAG) rating applied in this report have been robustly 
challenged. 
 
Inevitably, throughout the year, original Delivery Plans will change due to changes in 
circumstances. Where such variations occur, initially it is the responsibility of the 

Recommendation 
 
1.  Cabinet note the forecasted overspend for the year against budget of £1.789m and 

the performance contents of this report, and ensure Portfolio Holders and Officers 
continue to work closely together to improve performance and take corrective action 
to deliver a balanced budget position. 

 

Page 29



 

6  

sponsoring department to develop and implement alternative budget delivery plans and 
actions. Only where there is no planned remedial action to address a non performing 
delivery plan will a forecasted overspend be reported.  
 
Major variations to delivery plans will be reported within individual departmental sections. 
It is imperative that Cabinet Members continue to challenge all Directors. 

 
3.   Capital Programme 
 
3.1  In the budget report taken to full Council in Feb 2012, the 2012/13 Capital Programme 

stood at £51.121m.  Following approval of new schemes, re-profiling and variations at Full 
Council in April and June 2012, the capital programme for 2012/13 was £58.379m 
however the latest forecast at the end of June 2012, is now £59.943m.  These figures do 
not include the Tamar Bridge & Torpoint Ferry capital schemes of £1.626m that were 
approved by the Joint Committee and taken to PCC Full Council in January 2012.   

 
3.2 Due to timing around the delivery of capital spend, and variations due to programme 

slippage, changes in priorities, contractor performance, ability to achieve capital receipt 
etc. we are now reporting the following changes to the timing of capital spend over the 
next four financial years:    
 
Table 3 – Recommended Re-profiling and Variations to Capital Programme  
 
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Re-Profiling / Other Variations 

£000 £000 £000 £000  
    Re-profiling 

(800) 800 0 0 Plymouth Life Centre - Ice Provision 
(1,000) 1,000 0 0 Pilgrim- Basic Need 
(1,092) 1,092 0 0 Mercury abatement equipment in 

Crematoria 
(1,600) 400 1,200 0 History Centre (see 3.3 below) 

30 (30) 0 0 Laira Green- Basic Need 
79 (79) 0 0 Marine Academy Plymouth 

    Other Variations 
0 0 893 0 Disabled Facilities – projection of funding 

for 2014/15 
242 0 0 0 Marine Academy Plymouth – additional 

works funded by schools 
348 0 0 0 All Saints Academy Plymouth – additional 

works funded by schools 
118 228 120 0 Plymouth Station Phase 3 – additional 

grant funding awarded 
0 0 (1,000) (13,200) Eastern Corridor – changes to availability 

of future funding for block schemes 
730 0 0 0 Other Variations (see 3.3 below) 

(2,945) 3,411 1,213 (13,200) Total Re-Profiling / Other Variations 
  
3.3  The History Centre project is subject to option appraisal work, currently on-going, which 

is considering the suitability of the location, building etc. Other variations include 
potential additional costs associated with the on-going works at West Hoe Pier as 
additional voids have been found in phase one works and removal of soil bund within 
Central Park. 

Page 30



 

7  

 
3.4 The Capital Delivery Board has recently considered, and prioritised, a number of other 

new capital investment projects that deliver outcomes against corporate priorities. These 
schemes will be presented for approval at the next Full Council meeting in September 
2012.  
Table 4 – New Schemes to the Capital Programme 

 

* Programmed to go to August Capital Delivery Board 
 
3.5 The Capital Programme is always subject to variations, due to a number of different 

factors and these are reviewed each month through a financial report to the Capital 
Delivery Board. 
 
Table 5 – Revised 2012/13 Programme following approvals at Full Council 
(September 2012) 
 
 
 

 
             £000 

Programme following approvals at Full Council June 12         58,379 
  
Re-profiling for approval at September Cabinet (Table 4)  
 

(4,383) 

Variations / Virements for approval at September Cabinet (Table 4) 1,438 
New Schemes for approval at September Council (Table 5) 4,450 
New schemes already approved through delegated powers 59 
Revised (Latest Forecast)      59,943 
 
Capital Expenditure to Date 

 
3.6  To date, we have spent £5.477m which equates to 9.14% spend against the revised 

estimated annual spend of £59.943m.  Directorates are confident that they will be able to 
deliver the majority of the approved capital programme in year. Further re-profiling will 
be considered by the Capital Delivery Board in consultation with the cabinet member for 
finance, submitted to Cabinet and recommended to Full Council at monitoring stages. 

 
 
 
 
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
 

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 
5 0 0 0 Weston Mill Garden S106 

24 0 0 0 Plymstock - SEN Provision 
30 0 0 0  Flood defence works - Burniston Close 

  59    0    0    0 Schemes Approved Through Delegated Powers 
     

500 500 0 0 Health Income to fund Disabled Facilities * 
3,950 3,950 0 0 University Technical College 
4,450 4,450 0 0 Schemes to be Approved at September 2012 Council 

     

4,509 4,450    0    0 Total of new Schemes 

Page 31



 

8  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Capital Receipts 
 
3.7 There has been a decline in the availability of capital receipts over the last couple of years 

due to falling property and land prices and the use of assets in delivering wider 
employment and growth.  The current Medium Term capital programme assumes 
generation of £17.167m receipts up to, and including, 2015/16 although current valuations 
show an estimated value of £14.168m (see 3.8) giving a potential shortfall of £2.999m. 

 
3.8 The capital receipts now available to fund the programme (RAG rated) from the disposal 

of land and buildings are as follows: 
 

 
Disposal of Land / Buildings 

 
     £m 

2011/12 B/fwd   2.176 
2012/13 Estimated Receipts 5.678 
2013/14 Estimated Receipts 3.657 
2014/15 Estimated Receipts 2.618 
2015/16 Estimated Receipts 0.039 
Total 14.168 

 
3.9 The Council uses capital receipts as part of its funding streams however the timing of 

when the capital receipts are paid into the Council and when the programme delivery is 
requiring the receipts will never be a balanced position.  As such, any temporary shortfall 
of required capital receipts will need to be funded by short-term unsupported borrowing 
that would be financed from the Capital Finance Reserve or the working balance, until 
such time as additional capital receipts are generated. 

 
Capital Medium Term Forecast 

 
3.10 Projecting forward the above changes across the next three financial years provides a 

projected capital programme as detailed in Table 7.  This is the programme based on 
known projects and predicted funding streams. The council will remain proactive at 
optimising external grant funding wherever possible in order to continue significant capital 
investment in the city. The Council has adopted a four year Capital MTFF aligning it with 
the number of years over which the revenue MTFF is based. The programme contains the 
predicted income lines from un-ringfenced government grants so is a stable prediction of 
the MTFF, however it is anticipated that this programme will grow in future years when 
we receive more certainty around future funding streams. 

 
 
 

Recommendations:  
 
2. Cabinet approve the re-profiling and variations (reductions) of (£2.945)m in 

2012/13 and (£8.576)m for future years to capital spend as detailed in Table 3. 
 

3. Cabinet recommend to Full Council the new capital schemes over £0.500m for 
investment as detailed in Table 4 amounting to £4.450m in 2012/13 and £4.450m 
for future years. 
 

Page 32



 

9  

 
 

Table 6 – Capital Medium Term Forecast & Funding 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                        
Funding Source  

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£000 

2014/15 
£000 

2015/16 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Capital Receipts 9,615 6,352 1,200 0 17,167 
Unsupported Borrowing 6,625 1,843 750 500 9,718 
Supported Borrowing 107 0 0 0 107 
Grants & Contributions 40,355 27,412 13,116 2,332 83,215 
S106 / Tariff 1,192 50 750 0 1,992 
Revenue & Funds 2,049 698 337 0 3,084 
Total 59,943 36,355 16,153 2,832 115,283 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

2012/13 
Revised 
£000 

2013/14 
Revised 
£000 

2014/15 
Revised 
£000 

2015/16 
Revised 
£000 

Total 
£000 

 People 
 37,992 23,498 7,612 1,982 71,084 

 Place 13,204 11,511 7,791 350 32,856 
 Corporate Services  
 8,747 1,346 750 500 11,343 

 Total 59,943 36,355 16,153 2,832 115,283 

Page 33



 

10  

SECTION B – DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE & FINANCE REPORT 
  
4 People 
 
4.1   Finance and Performance Summary; General Fund Revenue Forecast is an 

overspend £0.589m   
 

  Responsible Officers: Maggie Carter / John Searson / Dave Simpkins / Stuart 
Palmer 

 
4.2 This report sets out the Finance position for the People Directorate, forecasting the year 

end position as at June 2012. 
 
4.3  The revenue position is shown in the table below with the current year end forecast of 

£0.589m overspend (0.4% of net budget) 
 
 
Table 7  
  

Service 

Latest 
Approved 

Budget 

Forecast Year 
End Position 

Variation at 
June 2012 

£m £m £m 
Children’s Social Care 26.757 27.277 0.520 
Joint Commissioning  & Adult Health 
and Social Care 67.931 67.931 0.000 
Education, Learning & Family Support 16.030 16.097 0.067 
Homes & Communities 9.332 9.334 0.002 
Programmes Director Projects 3.412 3.412 0.000 
Management and Support 0.368 0.368 0.000 

Total 123.830 124.419 0.589 

 

4.4 People Context  

Like the rest of the Council, services in the People Directorate are facing significant 
external challenges from welfare reform, the general state of the economy and the 
changing structure of the population which will see a continually ageing population on the 
one hand and, for the foreseeable future higher levels of young children. These 
demographic changes place high pressure on statutory social care services.  In line with 
government policy the agenda for the Directorate is on strategic whole system 
transformation aiming to shift resources to spend more on: 

 

§ Really good, easy to access information, advice and advocacy to help more people to 
help themselves 

§ Accessible, low level practical help to avoid crisis and maintain independence 

§ Self- directed support through personal budgets and direct payments to reduce 
dependence on statutory services and achieve better outcomes for people and their 
families 

Page 34



 

11  

All underpinned by high quality statutory services aimed at protecting the most vulnerable 
in society from harm and neglect and ensuring services are focused on delivering better 
outcomes for individuals.  

Therefore our strategy is fourfold working with people, communities and partners to 
invest in: 

§ Universal services 

§ Early intervention and prevention 

§ Choice and control  

§ Social capital 

4.5 Children’s Social Care 

Children’s Social Care is projecting a year end adverse variation of £0.520m. The current 
overspend on Independent Sector Placements is being offset by savings within the In- 
House Foster Care Service.  Plans are in place to reduce the Children in Care Service 
dependency on the Independent Sector as the number of In-House carers grow.  

Delivery Plans have been reviewed with new plans put in place to address the shortfall in 
Children’s Social Care. The Division are looking to reduce the remainder of the Delivery 
Plan £0.520m through additional savings identified by Service Managers within the financial 
year and this will continue to be monitored on a monthly basis. 

Referrals to children’s social care continue to rise. The 11/12 outturn number of 3609 
was 20% higher than the 10/11 outturn. Numbers in the first quarter of this year are 20% 
higher than the same quarter last year. This has created workload pressures in our advice 
and assessment service. Action is being taken to mitigate this and our performance against 
initial assessment timescales despite an initial dip has now recovered and is holding steady, 
just below our annual target.  

This increase in referral numbers has not, so far, led to a corresponding increase in the 
numbers of children subject to child protection plans or children in care that is often seen 
in such circumstances. This is likely due to the effectiveness of our family support services 
that are performing well in intervening to reduce need amongst these complex and 
vulnerable families.  Currently child protection plans and children in care numbers are 
holding steady and we are therefore on track to meet our annual target. The issue 
however is that this could at any time change due to in year service demand and in 
meeting our statutory obligation to protect children.  Caseload pressures are monitored 
weekly across all services. There is a particular focus on advice and assessment currently. 
We are reviewing the staffing establishment, addressing vacancies and utilisation of agency 
staff cover in this service. 

A key dependency for children’s social care in terms of stemming the increase in referral 
numbers is implementation of the early intervention and prevention strategy. This will 
increase family support capacity in the City to meet need earlier, improve outcomes and 
therefore reduce demand at the front door of social care. CAF activity is continuing to 
substantially increase with quarter one performance well over target. The early 
intervention programme plan will ensure deployment of resources such as the early 
intervention grant in specialist services for example, parent alcohol programme and 
domestic abuse services. This will address need at both the specialist and lower early 
intervention levels.  

 

 

Page 35



 

12  

A high level of HR scrutiny has been in place to address attendance rates, including an 
attendance action plan.  Specific issues identified include: 

a. high sickness levels within the Out of Hours service as various issues have been 
identified and addressed by a new service manager.  Most issues are now resolved and 
attendance is improving.  

b. The 16+ team currently have a high level of employee issues impacting on attendance 
and absence case drift has been identified where managers need to work more closely 
with HR to improve the attendance.   

c. Monitoring caseloads, addressing vacancies and utilisation of agency staff cover, 
particularly within the Advice and Assessment service. 

4.6 Joint Commissioning & Adult Health and Social Care 

The department is divided into 3 distinct areas:   

§ Strategic Commissioning and contracting of a wide range of universal services, 
including information, advice, advocacy, early intervention and prevention for people 
who use services and their carers, and for residential care and housing related 
support. 

§ Direct service provision for vulnerable people eligible for Council support. 

§ Assessment and Care Management including statutory functions carried out through 
assessment and support planning services for individuals 

The transformation programme covers everything we do and 2012/13 is a critical stage of 
implementation.  The Assessment and Care Management Service completed the full 
implementation of the new personalised operating system in July which has involved a 
complete management restructure, introduction of a new IT system including the 
“paperless” office and mobile working for all front line staff; plus a new, free, up-front 
offer for all clients of a short term period of reablement to delay or avoid entry into long 
term care.  The new systems offers personal budgets for all people eligible for on- going 
Council support.   

The new service aims to operate without waiting lists: “doing today’s work today”.  As all 
staff have undertaken a 6 day off line induction programme there have been anticipated 
reductions in performance due to reduced capacity over the last few months. An example 
of this has been a temporary increase in Delayed Transfers of Care during May.  These 
figures are now improving.  This has been mitigated by ensuring good communication 
with partners, particularly those in health.   

The key national indicator that applies to the new operating system is NI 130 which 
requires councils to offer 100% of eligible service users a personal budget by March 2013. 
This is a stretch target for all Councils and the current trajectory is for Plymouth to 
reach 60% by March 2013 achieving 100% by September 2013. Currently we are on 
target to achieve this.  

Throughout the period of the ASC restructure, which began in November 2011 there has 
been uncertainty for staff in terms of: 
· the management recruitment and selection process, 
· the new operating model  
· line management arrangements  

This period of major service change has for some staff manifested itself in a higher level of 
sickness. There will be a further period of bedding down the new structure, however the 
management arrangements that are now in place are focused on managing and maintaining 
staff attendance at work. 

Page 36



 

13  

There is positive evidence across the service of the use of the Managing Attendance 
Policy with a number of cases progressing to capability hearings. In addition a number of 
high absentee staff continue to be managed effectively and in some cases this has resulted 
in dismissal. 

4.7 Education, Learning and Family Support 

Education, Learning and Family Support is projecting a year end adverse variation of 
£0.067m which relates to the Hoops 4 Health contract renewal. Hoops 4 Health is the 
Plymouth Raiders’ basketball teams’ community scheme, now in its third year and a 
£0.067m contract has been signed with Plymouth City Council for this financial year. It is 
anticipated that this and the red delivery plans for this area will be contained by 
maximising the use of grants and other budget reductions in this department which will 
be finalised in the next few months. NEET performance is on track to deliver the 2012/13 
target of 7.9%. However, it will not be fully known whether this can be maintained until 
current school leavers enter the labour market and further education in September. 
Following rigorous support and challenge of primary schools failing to meet floor 
standards it is likely that the number falling below national expectations will be 
dramatically reduced. Provisional results will be available in September.  Education, 
Learning and Family Support currently has the lowest absence rate within People 
Directorate.  Average working days lost have been steadily reducing: 8.54 (April); 7.58 
(May) to 7.22 (June) and the trend remains downwards. A comparison of long and short 
term sickness absence shows a slight increase in long term but a decrease in short term 
absences. However, there has been an increase in those cases entering the top 100. This 
issue is being addressed by managers who will be raising capability reports where 
appropriate. Recent appraisals have been used to ensure objectives secure better 
management of absence.  

4.8 Homes & Communities 

Homes and Communities is reporting a zero variation. Delivery Plans have been put in 
place in order achieve the target of £0.067m.  Close monitoring of the high risk areas 
such as Bed & Breakfast payments and changes to income levels from Service Level 
Agreements to spot purchasing arrangements within the ‘Family Intervention Service’. 
The direction of travel on sickness absence is downwards for this area with some long 
term sickness cases recently being resolved.   

Across all Homes and Communities services we are reporting performance at on or 
above target for most indicators. Crime targets which were challenging have all come 
back into target with the exception of violent crime. However a concerted multi agency 
set of actions is in train led by ourselves and the police. ASB levels have been reduced by 
30% on last year’s figures 

4.9 Programme Director Projects and Management & Support  

 There are no financial variations to report 

Page 37



 

14  

 

4.10 Delivery Plans 2012/13   
 

The People Directorate Delivery Plan totals £7.044m for 2012/13. The following table 
shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG).  
 

Table 8 
 

 Service £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £ 
000's 

 RED AMBER GREEN Total 

Adult Health & Social Care 0 3,651 950 4,601 

Children Social Care  437 597 250 1,284 

Education, Learning & Family Support  378 130 485 993 
Homes & Communities - Safer 
Communities 0 0 27 27 

Homes & Communities - Strategic Housing 0 0 39 39 

Other 100 0 0 100 

Grand Total 915 4,378 1,751 7,044 
 
4.11 Schools 
 
4.12 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position is reported to the Schools Forum each 

time that they meet. The latest reported position of May 2012/13 is attached. 
 
4.13 The latest forecast shows a projected monitoring underspend of £0.252m for DSG 

funded activities which is in relation to Direct School Expenditure.  
  
 Savings reported on the Direct School Expenditure relates to: 
 
 1. The Department for Education has allowed local authorities to exclude insurance from 

the DSG recouped for academies. This is aimed at evening out inconsistencies across the 
country in the way insurance is treated. The saving is for one year only. From 2013/14 
insurance will be included in the academies pupil led funding and recouped accordingly.   

  
2. The adjustment of early years funding to reflect a higher number of children on the 
summer 2012 headcount.  

 
4.14 Risks and Issues 
 

1. Demographics and high cost packages in ASC 
2. Income levels in sold services to schools and academies do not reach planned 

levels 
3. Looked after children numbers increasing could result in higher costs of care if 

the early intervention and prevention strategy does not deliver change 
4. Home Office transfer of financial responsibility for young offenders remanded 

to the local authority will have an impact on resources particularly around 
social worker and independent reviewing officer time. 

Page 38



 

15  

5. Increasing cost pressures based on increasing demand and volume of people 
who are at risk of homeless or have significant housing needs  

6. Transformation of ASC operational processes are in the transitional year 
which will need careful financial management 

7. Utility costs relating to the Life Centre may be more than budgeted for and 
under the Leisure Management contract the Council would need to review 
performance. 

8. Impact of Welfare reform on the ability to place homeless families is already 
starting to occur  

9. Grants within the department need careful management to plan for potential 
reductions in future government spending reviews  

 
4.15 Medium Term Issues 

1. Reducing resources against raising expectations and demand 
2. Changes to schools formula funding 
3. The impact of Welfare reform 
4. Level of grants available 

 
 
5 Place 
 
5.1 Finance and Performance Summary; General Fund Revenue Forecast is an 

overspend £0.807m   
 

  Responsible Officers: Jayne Donovan / David Draffan / Paul Barnard / Clive 
Perkin 

 
5.2 This report sets out the Finance position for the Place Directorate, forecasting the year 

end position as at June 2012. 
 
5.3  The revenue position is shown in the table below with the current year end forecast of 

£0.807m overspend (1.9% of net budget) 
 
Table 9 
 

Service 
Latest Approved 

Budget 
Forecast Year 
End Position 

Variation at 
June 2012 

£m £m £m 
Economic Development 1.690 1.734 0.044 
Planning 1.765 2.033 0.268 
Transport & Infrastructure 14.496 14.976 0.480 
Environmental Services 24.858 24.928 0.070 
Strategic Waste 0.305 0.250 (0.055) 
Business Support (0.626) (0.626) 0 
Management and Support 0.548 0.548 0 
Place Budget Savings (0.100) (0.100) 0 

Total 42.936 43.743 0.807 

 
 
 

Page 39



 

16  

5.4 Economic Development - £0.044m adverse variation 

The first quarter has seen a sustained downward pressure on commercial rents with the 
continuing difficult economic climate and the double-dip recession.  A number of tenants 
have ceased trading resulting in increased holding costs as well as reduced rental income.  
A number of rent reviews and lease renewals are currently under negotiation on west 
end retail units where final settlements of up to 30% reductions on current rental levels 
are expected, making current income targets unachievable as flagged up in budget 
preparation for 2012/13. There is also the additional pressure of £20,000 professional 
fees relating to the airport. The Land & Property Team continue to pro-actively manage 
the estate by seeking opportunities to maximise income from underutilised assets and 
offering competitive rentals and incentives to attract new occupiers to mitigate the 
current pressures. 

A report on Youth Unemployment following a review by a scrutiny panel was taken to 
Cabinet in July. Cabinet approved all the recommendations including progressing work on 
an employability workshop, involving employers and education, later this year and to 
launch an initiative encouraging 1,000 companies in the city to take on at least 1 
employee. A new Jobs Task Force was launched in July, which will produce a Plan for Jobs 
by December. It is chaired by the Leader, has a number of influential external members 
and is project managed by the Economic Development Team.  

There is on-going support for city partners who are in dialogue with the LEP to access 
Growing Places Fund money for capital projects which support enterprise and new 
business creation.  

Confirmation was received that our bid into the Coastal Communities Fund has 
successfully passed Stage 1. Stage 2 needs to be completed by September. Outcomes for 
Plymouth’s Regional Growth Fund bids are expected in the autumn too.  

In the private sector there have been a number of small-scale announcements of jobs 
being created and a major announcement of expansion by KPM [Kawasaki] which could 
create 100 jobs.  

The Marine City Festival programme has been announced and it includes a business 
strand where as well as an Expo on the Hoe, the Economic Development Team will be 
arranging a visit by the Trade Minister to meet some of Plymouth’s leading exporters and 
innovator companies.  

A board has been formed to take forward the South West Marine Energy Park. The 
second edition of the Plymouth Economic Review was produced and published. The 
Council is in continued dialogue with the LEP about the how LEP can help bring more 
jobs and economic growth to the city. The ED Service is fully engaged with early internal 
discussions about the possibility of the Council pursuing a City Deal with Government in 
order to boost jobs and tackle deprivation. 

 

5.5 Planning - £0.268m adverse variation 
 
About £200K relates to costs associated with the North West Quadrant Public Inquiry.  
In addition, a shortfall of fees against budget of about £115K is currently projected given 
the continuation of the adverse economic climate, the impact of which is reduced by 
projected savings elsewhere. 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

17  

5.6 Transport & Infrastructure - £0.480m adverse variation 

The first few months has seen a number of increasing budget pressures, which include 
£150k from increased highway maintenance on pot hole repairs (additional DfT monies 
not forthcoming), £150k from rising street lighting energy costs, as well as c.£50k for 
CCTV due to loss of funding, following the end of the ten year funding for Devonport 
Regeneration Community Partnership. The period has also seen a drop in anticipated 
income from Parking of £100k due to poor economic climate and bad weather 

5.7 Environmental Services - £0.070m adverse variation 

This overspend, £70k external support costs for a procurement project, represents an 
unexpected pressure on the service and could therefore result in an overspend at year 
end. .  However the service will continue to try and offset this pressure with further 
efficiency savings. 

The percentage of waste recycled, reused and composted this quarter (NI 191) is above 
target with cumulative performance at 34.05% against an annual target of 34%.  The 
expanded garden waste scheme is providing results with compost tonnages 11% higher 
than the same period last year and the highest tonnage collected in this quarter since the 
service began.  

There has been a positive downward trend in working days lost within Environmental 
services for the past year due to regular monitoring, wellbeing meetings etc.  This has 
brought the average down from c18 days lost early in 2011 to just over 11 in the first 
quarter of 2012.  Work is still ongoing to reduce this figure further 

 

5.8 Delivery Plans 2012/13   
 

The Place Directorate Delivery Plan totals £1.4m for 2012/13. The following table shows 
the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG). 

 
 
Table 10 

 
  
Service £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's 

Row Labels RED AMBER GREEN Grand 
Total 

Transport & infrastructure   300 300 

Other 800 

 
300 1,100 

Grand Total 800 0 600 1,400 
 

 
5.9 The following significant risks are assumed within the Delivery plan. 
 

• The £0.700m red rated delivery plans against other refers to the Accommodation 
Strategy Phase 1 that includes Civic Centre. The Introduction of Phase 2 has 
reduced part of the pressure from delivery plan, The Council has set aside an 
accommodation reserve to cover maintenance issues around the Civic Centre and 
any pressures on the Accommodation Strategy project. It is likely this will need to 
be utilised to address at least some of this pressure. 

Page 41



 

18  

• The other £0.100m red rated delivery plan refers to a new action to review 
Customer Contact Centre. 

 
5.10 Risks and Issues 

 
· The department is currently facing risks from achieving consistent levels of External 

Income from Car Parking, Planning Fee Income and commercial Rent. This is impacting on 
Service Delivery.  

 
· There are also pressures from the Public Enquiry linked to North West Quadrant. 

 
· Environmental Services are currently considering replacement mini-bus replacements and 

any delay in this could have a consequential effect on the amount of savings anticipated to 
achieve service delivery plans for the current year. 

 
· The Accommodation Strategy also presents a risk for the department as highlighted 

above  
 

5.11 Medium Term Issues 
 

The economic climate provides continuing challenges to Income targets for the 
departments within Place, in order for it to achieve future commitments. Rising energy 
prices will continue to add pressures for street lighting, whilst premise costs continue to 
rise. Increasing waste disposal costs have been projected for the next few years as the 
cost of tonnage increases. 
 

6. Corporate Services 
 

6.1 Finance and Performance Summary; General Fund Revenue Forecast is an 
overspend £0.393m   

 

  Responsible Officers: Malcolm Coe / Dave Saunders / Mark Grimley / Tim 
Howes 

 
6.2 This report sets out the Finance position for the Corporate Services Directorate, 

forecasting the year end position as at June 2012. 
 
6.3  The revenue position is shown in the table below with the current year end forecast of 

£0.393m overspend (1.3% of net budget) 

Page 42



 

19  

 
Table 11 

 

Service 

Latest 
Approved 

Budget 

Forecast 
Year End 
Position 

Variation at 
June 2012 

£m £m £m 
Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & 
Assets 19.267 19.267 0.000 

Democracy & Governance 5.055 5.256 0.201 
Customer Services 4.763 4.763 0.000 
Human Resources & 
Organisational Development 3.226 3.428 0.192 

Departmental Management 0.181 0.181 0.000 
Corporate Services Budget Savings (1.965) (1.965) 0.000 

Total 30.537 30.930 0.393 
 

6.4 Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets 

 The Procurement Delivery plan remains a challenge. The corporate buyer function is 
delivering revenue savings which is added to through re-negotiation of major contracts 
and developing specific areas of category management. We are forecasting delivery of the 
required £1m savings in 2012/13, but need to re-assess our ability to deliver the 
challenging targets set in future years. 

 
At the end of the first quarter collection rates for Council Tax and NNDR are slightly off 
track. The cumulative collection rate for Council Tax at the end of June stood at 26.53% 
against a target of 27.06%. However, collection rates are slightly up when comparing the 
same period last year. The cumulative collection rate for NNDR stands at 36.11% against 
a target of 36.48%. However, collection rates are over £1m higher than the same period 
last year. 
 
There was a reduction in processing days for new benefit claims to 22 days in June from 
24 in May. Processing of new claims has now seen a month on month reduction since the 
end of the financial year when performance stood at 28 days. The service has been 
working on reducing a backlog of claims which has had some impact on processing 
changes of circumstances. This has been caused by needing to implement a new 
Department of Works and Pensions system. It is anticipated that the backlog will be 
significantly reduced over the next two months. A new online self-service and changed 
working practices along with an improvement plan will all contribute towards improving 
performance over the next quarter. 
  

6.5 Democracy & Governance 

The current estimate due to the additional police authority elections and the fact that the 
local elections didn’t coincide with any national elections (allowing costs to be shared) is 
for a pressure of £0.2m 

 

 

Page 43



 

20  

6.6 Human Resources and Organisational Development 

 The SAP replacement is budgeted to drive out savings and improvements which will 
cover the cost of borrowing. At this stage we are forecasting a pressure in the current 
year for borrowing costs of £0.192m. The next key date for phase I of the project is go-
live in payroll in November 2012. 

 

6.7 Customer Services 

 
The target for library visitor numbers 2012/13 represents a 3% uplift on 2011/12 in 
anticipation of increased footfall to our libraries following the introduction of the Health 
and Social Care Hubs. The project is officially launched on October 1st and, although 
visitor numbers are down month on month to date, the significant increase in visitors 
during July from the previous months indicates a potential turn in this trend. 
  

6.8 Delivery Plans 2012/13   
 

The Corporate Services Directorate Delivery Plan totals £3.257m for 2012/13. The 
following table shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG). 
 

Table 12 
 

  £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's 

Service Row Labels RED AMBER GREEN Grand 
Total 

Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets  1,050 400 1,450 

Customer Services    480 480 

HR & OD   527  400 927 

Change Office / Cross Cutting 
 

300 100 400 

Grand Total 527 1,350 1,380 3,257 
 

 
6.9 The following significant risks are assumed within the Delivery plan. 
 

· The £0.527m red rated delivery plan against 3rd and 4th Tier Management 
Restructure is subject to clear costings and implementation across Directorates. 
At this stage Corporate Management Team anticipate that some of this delivery 
plan will be achieved through restructures by the year end, but until consultations 
and final costings have been undertaken the exact amount in year is not known. 
The delivery plan will be achieved for future years, and officers are reviewing the 
level of vacancies that could offset this delivery plan in the current year.  

 
6.10 Risks and Issues 

 
· Welfare reforms 
· Procurement delivery plans 

 
 
 

Page 44



 

21  

6.11 Medium Term Issues 
 

· Welfare reforms 
· Changes to business rates and housing benefit administration 
· Realisation of benefits from IT/Customer project 

 
 

7.  Chief Executive’s Office 
 
7.1 Finance and Performance Summary; General Fund Revenue Forecast is 

breakeven  
 

  Responsible Officers: Giles Perritt / Richard Longford 
 
7.2 This report sets out the Finance position for the Chief Executive’s Office, forecasting the 

year end position as at June 2012. 
 
7.3  The revenue position is shown in the table below with the current year end forecast of 

breakeven. 
 
Table 13 
 

Service 

Latest 
Approved 

Budget 

Forecast 
Year End 
Position 

Variation at 
June 2012 

£m £m £m 
Policy Performance and 
Partnerships 1.454 1.454 0.000 

Corporate Communications 0.568 0.568 0.000 

Departmental Management 0.346 0.346 0.000 

Delivery Plans (0.100) (0.100) 0.000 

Total 2.268 2.268 0.000 

 
7.4 Executive Office Context  

 
A new Chief Executive has now been recruited and will join the authority in the Autumn.  
The financial performance will be updated to reflect the actual implication of the change 
in Chief Executive in the second quarters report. The rationalisation of Policy, 
Performance and Partnerships is now completed and the service is now at full 
establishment.  
 
The final financial position for the service will be reported in the second quarters report 
once all non-staffing costs have been established. The Executive Office continues to drive 
reductions in cross cutting costs such as consultations, print, publicity and advertising and 
the production of corporate publications.   
 
 
 

Page 45



 

22  

Attendance gives no cause for concern at the current time. The Professional Assistants 
restructure is near completion. The Head of PPP will now take overall management 
responsibilities for the Assistants. A financial update for this area will be given in the next 
quarterly report 

 

7.5 Delivery Plans 2012/13   
 

The Executive Office Delivery Plan of £0.100m for 2012/13 is current rated Amber. 
 

Table 14 
 

  £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's 

Ro Service w Labels RED AMBER GREEN Grand 
Total 

Executive Office (Rationalise Printing, 
Publicity and Advertising) 0 100 0 100 

Grand Total 0 100 0 100 

 
7.6 Risks and Issues 

 
· Legacy commitments (particularly to Adult Social Care and Children’s Services) 

continue to dominate our resource allocation 
· No audit of statutory requirements for policies leaves PCC exposed for 

inspections 
· Poor quality assurance and concerns about the accuracy of data undermine the 

confidence stakeholders have in reports 
· Technology fails to automate manual data manipulation 
· Delivery plans are unsuccessful at meeting the budget for FY 13/14 

 
 
8. Corporate Items and Cross Cutting Issues 
 

Revenue budget forecasted out-turn 
 
8.1  For this first quarter report, we are reporting a nil variance against the budget for the 

year. Therefore, at this stage we are assuming that the £0.5m contingency budget will be 
fully utilised during the year. 

 
Capital Financing Budget /Treasury Management 

 
8.2  The Treasury Management Board continues to meet regularly to discuss the actions in 

respect of borrowing and investments in accordance with the approved strategy.  
 

· Debt Rescheduling 
 
Movements in gilts over in the year have reduced PWLB loan interest rates meaning that 
there have been no opportunities to date to achieve savings from the repayment or 
rescheduling of long-term debt. It is unlikely that in the current climate interest rates will 
move in a favourable direction but PWLB rates continue to be monitored by Council 
officers and our Treasury Management advisors Arlingclose to take any opportunity to 
make revenue savings as and when this occurs. 

Page 46



 

23  

 
· Investments 

 
Council Officers and Arlingclose will monitor credit conditions and further deposits will 
be made in line with the Council’s Treasury Management strategy when conditions are 
appropriate for such investments. 

 
· Icelandic Bank Update    

 
 The Council continues to receive regular dividend payments in respect of its investment 

in Heritable bank, with the TM Board continuing to monitor the position closely. We are 
also working in conjunction with other Local Authorities with similar outstanding claims. 
Monies received to date are: 
 

Glitnir - received £5,033,247.31 (principal £4,742,018.12 and interest £291,229.19) 
amounting to 79.03% of our agreed claim leaving a balance yet to be recovered of 
£1,335,240.36. 
 
Landsbanki – received £1,747,374.90 (principal £1,654,658.06 and interest £92,716.84) 
amounting to 41.37% of our agreed claim. The amount received includes £516,791.13 
received in 12/13 (May) made up of £489,369.86 principal and £27,421.27 interest leaving 
a balance yet to be recovered of £2,476,760.44. 
 
Heritable – received £2,350,910.81 (principal £2,236,861.87 and interest £114,048.94) 
amounting to 74.56% of our claim. This includes £209,365.25 received in 12-13 (April and 
July) made up of principal of £199,208.37 and interest of £10,156.88 leaving a balance of 
£802,047.56 yet to be recovered. 
 

Budget Virements 
 

8.3 The Council’s net budget requirement was set by Council at its meeting on 27 February 
2012 at £203.765m. Amendments to this overall budget can only be made by Full Council. 
During the year there will be several movements in budget allocations across 
services/departments as part of the delivery of the day to day business of the Council. 
Movements in the budget are continually tracked and an audit trail held for budget 
control purposes. In addition, Financial Regulations require all budget virements in excess 
of £100,000 to be approved by Cabinet.   

Page 47



 

24  

 
8.4   Cabinet are now requested to approve the budget virements detailed in Table 8. All of 

these virements balance to zero with the overall council net revenue budget remaining at 
£203.765m 

 
Table 15 – Virements over £100k for Cabinet Approval 
 

Virements over £100k £000's 

DIRECTORATE 
Revenue Grant 
Carry Forward 

Grant 
Allocations 

Total 
virements 

>£100k 

PEOPLE  694 711 1,405 

PLACE 213 154 367 

CORPORATE SERVICES 0 0 0 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE 366 0 366 

CORPORATE ITEMS (1,273) (865) (2,138) 

TOTAL 0 0 0 
 

 
A brief explanation of these virements is as follows: 
 
Revenue Grant Carry Forward 

8.5    Revenue Grant Carry-Forward as agreed by CMT including the Performance Reward 
Grant, Early Intervention Grant, Mortgage Rescue, New Homes Bonus and Local Services 
Support Grant - Homelessness. 

 
Grant Allocations 

8.6   Transfer of the LSSG budget re lead local flood authorities to Transport and 
Infrastructure, Preventing Homelessness Grant & the community safety fund grant to 
Homes and Communities from Corporate Items. 
 
Virements per Table 2 

8.7  The total virements shown in Table 2 of this report, although still netting to zero, include 
those adjustments which individually are <£100k and therefore do not require cabinet 
approval. In total they amount to £155k. 

 
 

   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation 
 
4.  Cabinet approve the budget virements as detailed in Table 15. 
 

Page 48



 

25  

SECTION C - CONCLUDING REMARKS 
 
 

 9.1 We are now reporting for year two of our three year budget, in which we set out our 
plans to achieve budget savings of £30m by 2013/14. Building on the achievements during 
2011/12. It is imperative that the current year Delivery Plans are also achieved in-year as 
they too roll forward to underpin the budget for next year. 

 
 9.2 Despite reduced funding, the council remains committed to improving services and has 

revised its performance management framework to ensure that key focus is maintained 
on performance measures that contribute most towards the council and wider city’s 
priorities. 

 
9.3 Overall for the performance position at the end of the first quarter there are no critical 

indicators which would suggest there are no major areas of concern. However, with 50% 
of our performance indicators monitored in year on track, this leaves a further 50% 
which are not on track. As stated in the report, with 25% of indicators just off track, 
despite the difficult circumstances we are currently facing, we can report 75% of our 
performance indicators are there or there about on target.  

 
9.4  Although there are no critical issues to report on finance this time around, there are 

some areas of variance within individual departments that require close scrutiny. 
 
9.5  Revenue budgets are currently forecasting an end of year over spend of £1.789m. 

Departments will continue to address this overspend as we target an on-budget outturn 
in March 2013. 

 
9.6 Officers are working closely with the new administration to ensure the Capital 

Programme meets the new administration pledges. 
 
9.7 Officers are now working closely with Cabinet on the preparation of more detailed 

budgets for the next 3 financial years. 

Page 49



 

26  

Appendix A 
 

  
 

Page 50



 

 

 
 

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

Work Programme 2012/13 
 
 

 
Work Programme 

 
J J A S O N D J F M A 

Task and Finish            

 
Library Modernisation 
 

   tbc        

 
Social Fund Replacement (part of 
Welfare Reform) 
 

   tbc        

 
Compact 
 

          3 

Tenancy Strategy      
 
7 
 

     

Updates            

 
Plymouth Life Centre / Leisure 
Management Contract  
 

     7      

 
Police Crime Panels/Commissioner 
 

   12  7     3 

 
Noise Nuisance 
 

        6   

 
Government Policy Changes 
 

           

 
 
N.B – items will be automatically deleted from the work programme once they have been considered by the 
Panel 

Agenda Item 12Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2012/13 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 

Health Integration Programme 

 
Healthwatch 
 

 19          

Health and Wellbeing Board / Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) / Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (JHWBS) 

   13        

Government Policy Changes (updated as 
announced)             

Public Health Transition    13    24    

Joint Priorities 

Alcohol Strategy (Task and Finish)            

Dementia Strategy  19          

Safeguarding Vulnerable People (review of 
recommendations)      22      

NHS Devon Cluster Primary Care Trust 

NEW Devon, Clinical Commissioning Group (Western Locality) 

Commissioning Intentions 
  

 
 

 
 
 22 

 
 

 
 

 

Plymouth NHS Hospitals Trust 

Hospital Discharge Process (TBC) 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Winter Planning 
   

 
 

22 
 

 
 

 
 

Car Parking 
   

 
 

22 
 

 
 

 
 

Foundation Trust Business Case 
  

 
 

 
 

22 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 53



 
 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 

Plymouth City Council – Adult Social Care 

Social Care Transformation Programme        24    

Plymouth Community Healthcare 

Capital Investment in Glenbourne Unit    13     28   

Recovery Pathways (Mental Health Service)  19    22      

Performance Monitoring 

Adult Social Care        24    

Quality Accounts           11 

Referred by Local Involvement Network 

Services for Gypsies and Travellers (TBC)            

 

Page 54



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2012 - 2013 

 
 

Proposed work programme 
 

J J A S O N D J F M A 

 
Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets 
 
Shared Services Programme Review   6    19      

Carbon Management update      1       

Civic Centre update (Accommodation 
Strategy)     1       

ICT improvements update    6         

 
Customer Services 
Review Revenues and Benefits Service (Follow 
on from SS OSP T&F Group) 
 

    1       

 
Human Resources and Organisational Development 

School Academy Transfer update   6         
Review other authorities’ occupational health 
services and sickness (referred by Audit 
Committee on 16.12.11) 

 2          

Human Resources Workforce Update            

Sickness Policy Review   6         

 
Democracy and Governance 
             

 
Corporate Communications 

Social Networking Review       19      

 
Policy, Performance and Partnerships 
 
Community Engagement update             

 
Other Issues 

Government Policy Changes     1 19   11  8 

 
City and Council Priorities 

Page 55



 
 

 
Proposed work programme 

 
J J A S O N D J F M A 

Value for Communities        
 

   
 

 

 
Task and Finish Groups 

Council Tax Scheme review (Welfare Reform)            
Shared Services (DELT ICT Shared Services)            

 
Key 
 
* New item 
 
N.B – items will be automatically deleted from the work programme once they have been considered 
by the Panel. 

 

Page 56



 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 

Work Programme 2012/13 

Topics J J A S O N D J F M A M 

 
Budget Scrutiny  
 

  

     

9, 
14 
& 
16 

    

Cabinet response to budget 
scrutiny recommendations 

  
          

Budget Scrutiny Review (Min 84 (2) 
refers) 

  
          

Medium Term Financial Strategy             

Scrutiny Bi-Annual / Annual 
Scrutiny Report  

 
          

Leader and Chief Executive 13 
 

   14   13    

Review 2011 Interim Staff Survey 
Results (Minute (70 (8) refers) 

     
 

      

Corporate Plan 2012-15 
  

3 
   

 
      

Welfare Reform 
  

25 
  

5, 
19 

 
 

      

Police and Crime Panel 
     

 
      

Finance and Performance 
Reporting 

     
3  

      

Child Poverty Working Group 
     

 
      

Community Right to Challenge 
    

5 
 

 
      

Government Policy Changes 
     

 
      

Joint Finance and Performance 
Report 

     
3  

 
12 

     

*MPs Meeting 
    

21 
 

 
 
 

     

*Youth Unemployment (how 
successful young people with 
special educational needs and 
disabilities are in gaining 
employment) 
 

     

 

      

 
*  - indicates new a new item 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



   

REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY 
WORK PROGRAMME ITEM 

      
 

 
 

 Title of Work 
Programme Item 

Library Modernisation 
 

2 Responsible Director 
(s)  

Adam Broome (Director for Corporate Services) 
 

3 Responsible Officer 
Tel No.   
 

Darin Halifax (Community Cohesion Co-ordinator) 
Tel ext 5446. 

4 Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Cllr Peter Smith (Deputy Leader) 
 

5 Objectives Public libraries are changing nationally and internationally at 
great speed. Many different approaches are being trialled, some 
with the intention of reducing expenditure and the level of 
services. There is currently a review process taking place 
looking at library modernisation in Plymouth with the aims and 
objectives to 
• Maintain and enhance the citywide network of library 

buildings and services 
• Expand the role of libraries to provide Council information 

and services and those of its key partners, such as the NHS 
• Establish a blueprint for development which improves 

literacy, and by improving literacy improve employability 
• Create a service which remains sustainable in the face of 

future reductions in expenditure 
• Embed the “Co-operative Council” concept in the way 

communities contribute to decision-making about the 
service 

• Consider an approach to the use of volunteers which is 
appropriate to Plymouth and its communities. 

 
The objectives of the task and finish group is to make its 
recommendations on how the aims and objectives of the new 
service could be achieved, with particular emphasis on 
accessibility for people who do not have a local library and 
attracting people who do not currently use the service.   

 

V2 30/8/12  Not protectively marked 
 

Agenda Item 13Page 59



6 Who will benefit? 
 
 
 

The scrutiny is an opportunity to consider how we use libraries 
in the city to the benefit of library users, council departments 
and partners. It would also specifically look at why people do 
not use libraries and what can we do to attract them.  
 
The task and finish group will enhance the current review 
process and will provide a particular opportunity for members 
and others to make their recommendations to cabinet/council.  
 

7 Criteria for Choosing 
Topics (see table at 
end of document) 
 

• High budgetary commitment 
• Issue consistently identified by Members as key through 

constituency activity  
• Public interest issue covered in local media 
 

8 What will happen if we 
don’t do this review? 
 

There would be no independent scrutiny of the library 
modernisation programme. 
 

9 What are we going to 
do? 

Task and finish group 
 

10 How are we going to 
do it? (witnesses, site 
visits, background 
information etc.) 
 

Background information ( to include RIEP report and 
recommendations on the review of library services in the SW 
and experiences of other councils that have recently undergone 
a similar exercise) 
Scrutiny reports supplied by officers 
Potential site visits 
Witnesses. 

11 What we won’t do. The task and finish group will not be an alternative for future 
community consultation should that need arise.  

12 Timetable & Key 
Dates 

Task and Finish Group meetings – Sept/Oct 2012 
Task and Finish Group report to Customers and Communities 
OSP – 7 Nov 2012 
Task and Finish Group report to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board (Delegated authority required) 
Task and Finish Group report to Cabinet – 13 Nov 2012 

 
13 Links to other projects 

or initiatives / plans 
Corporate plan 
 

 
14 Relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel / 
Membership if Task 
and Finish Group (to 
be decided by OSP 
before submission to 
OMB 

Customers and Communities OSP Task and Finish Group 
comprising Councillors Casey, Jarvis, Jordan, Martin Leaves and 
Tuffin. 

15 Where will the report 
go?  Who will make 
the final decision 
 

Task and Finish Group report to be considered by Cabinet on 
13 November 2012 who will make final decision. 

16 Resources (staffing, 
research, experts, sites 
visits and so on) 
 

Staffing – particularly from library services 
Research 
Witnesses 

 

Page 60



17 Is this part of a 
statutory responsibility 
on the panel? 

N/A 

18 Should any other panel 
be involved in this 
review?  If so who and 
why? 

N/A 

19 Will the task and finish 
group benefit from co-
opting any person(s) 
onto the panel. 

Yes – Co-opted person to be decided. 

20 How does this link to 
corporate priorities? 

The library modernisation programme links directly to Raising 
Aspiration, Reducing inequalities and Value for Communities. 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Management Board Minutes 05.09.12

	6 TRACKING DECISIONS
	9 NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS/PRIVATE BUSINESS (FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE FORWARD PLAN)
	11 FIRST QUARTER JOINT PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT
	12 WORK PROGRAMMES
	HealthWorkProgrammeSeptember
	SupportServicesWorkProgramme  080812, 01/10/2012 Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel
	MB work programme 03.10.12

	13 PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT (PID)

